Table of Contents

ARTICLE I APPLICABILITY, MEMBERS, MEMBERSHIP AND DEFINITIONS 2
ARTICLE II PRINCIPAL OFFICE
ARTICLE III MEETINGS OF MEMBERS; VOTING 3
ARTICLE IV BOARD OF TRUSTEES 5
ARTICLE V OFFICERS 6
ARTICLE VI POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES, AND RESTRICTIONS
ON THE EXERCISE THEREOF
ARTICLE VII INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND TRUSTEES
ARTICLE VIII NOTICES
ARTICLE IX AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS16
ARTICLE X PARLIAMENTARY RULES 16
ARTICLE XI DISSOLUTION 16
ARTICLE XII PREVIOUS BY-LAWS

<u>ARTICLE I</u> APPLICABILITY, MEMBERS, MEMBERSHIP AND DEFINITIONS

§1. These are the By-Laws of SEASHORE LINE RESORT, A CONDOMINIUM (hereinafter referred to as the "Condominium") and of Seashore Lin e Campers Resort Condominium Association, a not-for-profit corporation of the State of New Jersey (hereinafter referred to as the "Association"). The administration and management of the Condominium and the Condominium Property and the actions of the Association and the Members thereof shall be governed by these By-Laws.

§2. All present and future Unit Owners, their licensees, invitees, agents, employees and any other person or persons that shall be permitted to use the Condominium Property of the Condominium, shall be subject to the By-Laws and to the Rules and Regulations issued by the Association to govern the conduct of its Members. Acquisition and occupancy of any of the Units in the Condominium shall be conclusively deemed to mean that the Unit Owner or occupant has accepted and ratified these By- Laws and the Rules and Regulations of the Association and will comply with them.

§3. As used in these By-Laws, the term "Member" means the Unit Owner of a Unit in the Condominium. Other terms used herein shall have the same meanings set forth in the Master Deed and/or the Condominium Act of the State of New Jersey, N.J.S.A. 46:8B-1 et seq. (the "Condominium Act").

§4. Membership in the Association shall be limited to the Owners of the 374 Units in the Condominium provided, that when title to a Unit is vested in two or more persons or in a corporation only the Entitled Party, as defined in Paragraph 9B of the Master Deed, shall be permitted to cast the vote allocated to the particular Unit. In the event that a Unit Owner shall lease or permit another to occupy his Unit, the tenant or occupant shall be permitted to enjoy the Condominium Property to the extent that such Unit Owner shall be entitled, but shall not be a member of the Association and shall not vote in the affairs of the Association unless he shall be designated an Entitled Party by the Unit Owner in the manner provided in Paragraph 9B of the Master Deed. The use of the Condominium Property shall be limited to Unit Owners, tenants and occupants of Units and their licensees, invitees, agents and employees. If a Unit is owned by more than one individual, or is owned by a corporation or partnership, or if a Unit is under a lease, then the individual entitled to cast the vote for the Unit shall be the individual named in the

certificate given pursuant to Paragraph 8B of the Master Deed (said individual being in the Master Deed and in these By-Laws called the "Entitled Party").

§5. Every lawful transfer of title to the Unit Owner of a Unit shall include membership in the Association, and upon making such transfer, the previous Unit Owner's membership shall automatically terminate. Except as aforesaid, membership in the Association may not be assigned or transferred, and any attempted assignment or transfer thereof shall be void and of no effect.

ARTICLE II PRINCIPAL OFFICE

§1. The principal mailing office of the Association shall be located at P. O. Box 552, South Seaville, New Jersey 08246.

<u>ARTICLE III</u> <u>MEETINGS OF MEMBERS; VOTING</u>

§1. All annual and special meetings of the Members of the Association shall be held at the <u>Seashore Line Resort Condominium</u>.

§2. A monthly meeting of the Members of the Association shall be held on <u>a Sunday</u> May through September. <u>The particular Sunday of the month may be changed from time to time by discretion of the Trustees.</u> One <u>Annual Meeting</u> shall be held in August on the Third Sunday. The Treasurer of the Association shall present at each annual meeting an audit of the previous <u>fiscal</u> year <u>end</u> prepared and certified by an independent Certified Public Accountant of the Common Expenses, itemizing receipts and

expenditures. The allocation thereof to each Unit Owner and any charges expected for the present fiscal year. The results of the yearly elections shall be announced at the annual meeting in August.

§3. Special meetings of the Members shall be called by the President when so directed by a resolution of the Board of Trustees, or by a petition signed by Members on behalf of Unit Owners having Proportionate Voting Interests aggregating twenty percent (20%) or more, specifying in each case, the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting, other than as specified in the notice thereof.

§4. The Secretary of the Association shall give notice of each annual and each special meeting of the Members to the Entitled Party represent each Unit Owner and to the holder of any Permitted Mortgage thereon, in accordance with the further provisions hereof, not less than twenty (20) nor more than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting date specifying therein the time and place of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose thereof. The attendance at a meeting by any Entitled Party, or any party or the agent representing holders of Permissible Mortgages, without protesting prior to the conclusion of the meeting the lack of prior notice of such meeting shall constitute a Waiver of Notice of the meeting by such party.

§5. To constitute a quorum, for all purposes, there shall be required to be present at meeting of the Members of the Association, Entitled Parties, in person or by proxy, (issued by the Board of Trustees), representing Unit Owners in good standing holding <u>75 votes</u> of the Association, each Unit being accorded <u>1 vote</u>.

§6. As used in the succeeding subsections hereof, a Unit Owner shall be deemed to be in "good standing" if, any only if, he shall have fully paid all assessments made or levied against him and his Unit or Units by all Trustees as hereinafter provided, together with all interest, costs, attorney's fees, penalties and other expenses, if any, properly chargeable to him and against his Unit or Units, at least three (3) days prior to the date fixed for such annual or special meetings. A Unit which has been acquired by the Association in its own name or in the name of its agent, designee or nominee on behalf of all the Unit Owners, shall not be entitled to vote so long as it continues to be so held.

§7. The Secretary shall compile and keep up-to-date at the principal office of the Association a complete list of the Members and their last known post office addresses. Such list shall also show opposite each Member's name, the number of the Unit or Units owned by him, the percentage of Common Interest of the Member in the Common Elements in the Condominium, the number of votes which the Unit Owner is entitled to vote at meetings of the Association, and the Voting Representative, if any.

This list shall be open to inspection by all Members and other persons lawfully entitled to inspect the same at reasonable hours during regular business days. The Secretary shall also keep current and on site of the Association records, containing the minutes of all annual and special meetings of the Association and all resolutions of the Trustees.

- §8. The order of business at the annual meeting of the Members shall be:
 - a) Calling the roll
 - b) Proof of Notice of the meeting or certification as to waivers
 - c) Selection and appointment of inspectors of election
 - d) Election of Trustees
 - e) Reading of minutes of preceding meeting
 - f) Reports of the Officers
 - g) Reports of the Trustees
 - h) Reports of Committees
 - i) Unfinished business
 - j) New business
 - k) Adjournment

§9. The order of business at all other meetings of the Members shall, as far as practical, conform to the order of business at the annual meeting insofar as the special purpose of the meeting will permit.

ARTICLE IV BOARD OF TRUSTEES

§1. The Condominium shall be administered and managed, and the affairs of the Condominium Association shall be governed by a Board of Trustees consisting of five (5) persons, who shall not be compensated for such services. Trustees shall be elected for three-year terms. The Trustees shall be an owner of a Unit or the spouse of such Owner (or if a Partnership, Owner shall be a member thereof, or, if a Corporate Owner, shall be an officer and/or stockholder thereof). Only one family member may serve on the Board of Trustees, multiple family members on the same Board of Trustees is not permitted. <u>Any person elected to</u> serve on the Board of Trustees must be able to be Bonded. §2. At least thirty (30) days prior to any meeting, the Unit Owner shall be notified in writing of all candidates to the Board of Trustees and shall be furnished with ballots. The names of all candidates shall be typed or printed upon all ballots. Where there is more than one candidate, such names shall be arranged in alphabetical order.

§3. The election shall be by ballot, by mail and by a plurality of votes cast, determined as hereinbefore provided, each Entitled Party in good standing being authorized to cast his vote or votes for each of as many nominees as there are vacancies to be filled. There shall be no cumulative voting. If the number of nominees is equal to the number of vacancies to be filled, then the nominee(s) are considered to be running unopposed.

§4. Any Trustees may resign from the Board of Trustees at any time by written notice to the Board. Anything herein contained to the contrary not -withstanding, If a Trustee, who is also a Unit Owner, shall cease being a Unit Owner, such Trustee must be removed from the Board of Trustees by the unanimous vote of the other Trustees, which vote shall be held, if at all, at the first meeting of the Board of Trustees following the Board's Receipt of Notice of Cessation of Unit ownership. Resignation prior to seating of new officer elected is ok.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS

§1. The Officers of the Association shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, who shall be elected as stated in Article IV, Paragraph <u>1-3</u>. The Officers of the Association shall be elected from among its Trustees at the organization of each new Board, and shall hold office until their successors are elected.

- §2. No Officer shall be compensated for acting as such.
- §3. The following Officers shall have the duties set forth below:
 - The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Association, and shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the Board of Trustees. He shall have the general powers and duties usually vested in the office of President of an association, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the Members and Voting Representatives from time to time, as he may deem appropriate to assist in the conduct of

the affairs of the Association. He shall, together with either the Secretary or Treasurer and with a Board of Trustee approval, have the power and authority to execute deeds, leases, mortgages, bonds, notes, contracts and other instruments, in the name and on behalf of the Association, except when the signing and execution thereof shall be delegated by the Board of Trustees to another Officer or Officers of the Association;

- 2) The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the President nor the Vice President is able to act, the Board shall appoint some other Trustee to so do on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon him by the Board.
- 3) The Secretary shall have joint power with the President and with Board of Trustee approval execute deeds, leases, mortgages, bonds, notes, contracts and other instruments on behalf of the Association and be responsible for giving any Requisite Notice and for keeping the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Trustees and the Condominium Association, and have custody of all correspondence, papers and records, other than financial records.
- 4) The Treasurer shall have joint power with the President and with Board of Trustee Approval execute deeds, leases, mortgages, bonds, notes, contracts and other instruments on behalf of the Association and cause to be maintained full and accurate records and books of account of all receipts and disbursements of funds by the Board- at its direction., shall receive and <u>record the</u> receipt for funds assessed or collected by the Board, and shall deposit the same in such depository as may be selected by the Board, and render to the Board, on request, an accounting of all his transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Association. <u>These records shall be available to Unit Owners during regular business hours</u>. No agreement, check. contract, deed, lease, mortage or other written instrument or document shall be binding upon the Association unless entered by or approved by Resolution of the Board of Trustees and signed by any two (2) officers of the Association as provided above in Article V, paragraph 3, (1) (4).

Any Officer may be removed at any time with cause (for example violation of current By-Laws) with approval of the Unit Owners having proportionate Interests aggregating not less than 51% in the presence of a Quorum.

Any Trustee who resigns or is removed as a Trustee shall also be deemed to resign or be removed from any Association office he may hold. Any vacancy in any office by reason of death, resignation, removal or otherwise, shall be promptly filled by an election of the membership of the Association, the successor to serve the balance of the term so filled. The Board of Trustees may at their discretion offer the vacant position to an alternate from the prior election year. In that case the new Board Member will only serve until the next election.

<u>ARTICLE VI</u> <u>POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES, AND RESTRICTIONS ON THE</u> <u>EXERCISE THEREOF</u>

§1. The Board of Trustees shall have and exercise all lawful powers and duties necessary for the proper conduct and administration of the affairs of the Association and the administration and management of the Condominium and Condominium Property, In the performance of its duties as the administering body of the Association and of the Condominium, the Board of Trustees shall have powers and duties set forth in the Master Deed and these By-Laws, including, but not limited to, the following:

- A The operation, management, maintenance, cleaning, protection and replacement of the Common Elements. In connection therewith, the Board of Trustees:
 - are authorized to contract on behalf of all Unit Owners for water, sewer, electrical and other utility services provided to any of the Common Elements and, to the extent not separately metered and/or charged, to the Units, and for management, custodial, maintenance, extermination, snow removal, exterior window cleaning, painting, repairs and such other services, as well as such equipment, materials and supplies, as are deemed necessary or desirable by the Board for the proper performance of its duties hereunder;
 - 2) shall have an easement of access for itself or its agents, to any Unit for the purpose of accomplishing the foregoing; and
 - 3) shall charge the cost of such operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement to all Unit Owners as a Common Expense.
- B In the normal course of repairing and replacing existing improvements,
 there shall be no addition, alteration or further capital improvements greater than
 \$5,000.00 made to the Common Elements without prior approval of Unit Owners having

proportionate interests aggregating not less than 51% in the presence of a quorum. All expenditures greater than \$5,000.00 will require three written estimates before execution of a contract. The results shall be posted on the Association web site and reported at the next monthly meeting.

The only exception to this By-Law will be the correction of an emergency repair. An emergency repair is defined as one that affects the health, safety and welfare of the Association and requires immediate action. An emergency repair will not require three written estimates.

C The placement and purchase of, and payment of premium for a policy or policies of insurance providing coverage of the following types and amounts for the Board of Trustees, each member thereof, the Officers, and all Unit Owners, and the holder of each Permitted Mortgage (as defined in paragraph 14B of the Master Deed):

i) insurance against loss or damage by fire and such other risks as may be covered by extended coverage insurance covering the entire Property in an amount representing the full insurable replacement thereof, without deduction for depreciation, together with coverage for the payment of Common Expenses with respect to damaged Units during the period of reconstruction ("Fire Insurance Policy"); and

ii) insurance against liability for injury or death to persons or damage or loss of property with such limits as shall be established, from time to time, by the Board of Trustees, covering occurrences and accidents in or about the Property with coverage of the crossliability claims of any one or more or group of insured's, but excluding coverage for the liability of any Unit Owner for acts occurring solely within his Unit or away from the Property ("Liability Insurance Policy").

1) The Fire Insurance Policy shall contain mortgagee endorsements in favor of the holder of each Permitted Mortgage, but all payments on account of loss or damage covered by such policy for repairs and restoration shall be made to the Board of Trustees and shall be applied as directed by the Board of Trustees, unless, as provided in Section 24 of the Condominium Act, such damages shall constitute a substantially total destruction of the Common Elements or seventy-five percent (75%) of the Unit Owners directly affected thereby shall determine not to proceed with the work of repairs and restoration, in either of which events such sums shall be disbursed as therein provided. Such Policy shall contain waivers of subrogation and waivers of any defenses based on co-insurance or

invalidity, arising from any acts of those whose interests are covered thereby. The Board of Trustees shall charge and assess the cost of insuring the Common Elements as a Common Expense; and

- 2) The Liability Insurance Policy shall name the Board of Trustees as the party insured and the net proceeds thereof shall be paid to Board of Trustees, which shall distribute
- 3) the same to those whose interests are covered thereby, as their respective interests shall appear. The entire premiums for such Policy shall be charged as a Common Expense.
- 4) All policies of insurance carried under this subparagraph B, shall: (1) provide that all adjustments of loss shall be made only by the Board of Trustees; (2) contain waivers by the insurers of all rights by way of subrogation or otherwise to the claims or rights of any one named or persons otherwise covered or benefited by such policies against any one named or persons so covered or benefited thereby (including the Association and the Board of Trustees and their respective agents and employees and the Unit Owners and their respective agents and employees); (3) provide that the coverage afforded to any and all other named persons otherwise covered or benefited by such policies shall not be affected by the acts or omissions of any one or more named persons otherwise covered or benefited thereby; (4) provide that they shall not be cancelled or modified without at least ten (10) days' prior written notice to all those whose interests are covered thereby, including, without limitation, all holders of Permitted Mortgages in the case of the Fire Insurance Policy; (5) provide that the coverage afforded thereby shall not be affected or diminished or result in contribution by reason of any additional insurance separately carried by any Unit Owner as permitted by the further terms hereof or by any other person or entity; and (6) provide that the insurer shall not have the option to restore the insured premises in lieu of making a cash payment of the proceeds without the approval of the Association. Duplicate originals of all such insurance policies and renewals shall be delivered by the insurers (at least ten (10) days prior to the renewal in case of each renewal) to the Board, and duplicate originals or certificates or memorandums of insurance shall be issued by the insurers to all others whose interests are covered thereby, including, without limitation, the Unit Owners and the holders of Permitted Mortgages in the case of the Fire Insurance Policy. No Unit Owner shall do or permit any act which would void or impair the coverage afforded by said policies or would result in an increase in the premium therefore, and shall be liable to the Board for the amount of any such increase. The provisions of this subparagraph shall not be construed to prohibit any Unit Owner from carrying other, separate insurance for his own benefit, such as, by way of

illustration and not of limitation, public liability insurance covering liabilities occurring solely within his Unit or away from the Property, which liabilities will not be covered by the insurance to be carried by the Board of Trustees under the terms hereof, provided that all such policies shall be obtained either from an insurer with which like coverage is at the time of reference being carried pursuant to the foregoing provisions or from another insurer approved by the Board of Trustees, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, and shall contain waivers of subrogation (having the same scope as that required with respect to the insurance to be carried by the Board hereunder) and provided that the insurance carried by such Unit Owner shall not affect, alter or diminish the coverage under the policies being so carried by the Board. Copies of proposed policies of insurance shall, before being effected, be delivered to the Board for approval pursuant to the terms hereof, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, and the policies actually issued following such approval shall provide that they shall not be modified or cancelled without ten (10) days' prior written notice to the Board and copies thereof shall be provided to the Board when issued. If a casualty loss is sustained and there if a reduction in the amount of the proceeds which would otherwise be payable on the insurance purchased by the Board of Trustees hereunder, due to proration of insurance purchased by the Unit Owner, the Unit Owner agrees to assign the proceeds of this latter insurance, to the extent of the amount of such reduction, to the Association to be distributed as herein provided.

- D The preparation of an operating budget covering expenditures in connection with the maintenance, repair and replacement of the Common Elements, costs of insurance and any other Common Expense, the amount and period to be covered of the assessment covering the Common Expenses to be levied against all Unit Owners and the time for its payment. For this purpose, the Board of Trustees is expressly empowered to make the annual and special determinations and assessments on behalf of the Association that are authorized by the terms of paragraph 8A of the Master Deed, with particular reference to the following powers and duties:
 - The Board shall assess the total amount of its annual determination of the estimated Common Expenses for the ensuing fiscal year against all of the Units and the respective Unit Owners thereof, in the same proportion as their respective undivided interests in the Common Elements as set forth in the Master Deed. The proportionate amount thus found applicable to each Unit shall be payable by the Unit Owner in accordance with the schedule set forth by the Board of Trustees.

- 2) By majority vote of the Board, to make interim determinations adjusting or increasing the amount of any annual assessment for Common Expenses and the monthly installments thereof, and to levy and collect in addition thereto, special assessments for Common Expenses in such amounts as the Board may deem proper, whenever the Board is of the opinion it is necessary to do so in order to meet increased operating or maintenance costs, or additional capital expenses, or because of emergencies; provided, however, that all such increased or special assessments shall be made or levied against the Unit Owners and the Units owned by them respectively, in the same proportions or percentages as provided in paragraph 1, Sub-section <u>D 1</u>, of this Article VI.
- 3) It shall be the obligation of the Board to take prompt action to collect assessments for Common Expenses and for any expense incurred or advances made by the Board under paragraph 1, Sub-section <u>E</u>-of this Article VI, together with accrued interest, from the date incurred or advanced, as the case may be. The delinquent Unit Owner shall be obligated to pay (1) all expenses of the Board, including attorney's fees, incurred in the collection of the delinquent assessment by legal proceedings or otherwise, and (2) any amounts paid by the Board for taxes or on account of superior liens or otherwise to protect its lien; which expenses and amounts, together with accrued interest, shall be deemed to constitute part of the delinquent assessment and shall be collectible as such.
- E The determination of all other costs and expenses due from each Unit Owner other than such Unit Owner's share of the Common Expense; the manner of the assessment therefore; and the time for its payment. The following applications of these provisions are intended to define, but not by way of limitation, the scope of Board's powers hereunder:
 - 1) Each Unit Owner shall deliver to the Secretary original receipted bills evidencing the payment of all charges, claims, taxes and assessments against a Unit for which a lien could be filed, including by way of illustration and not limitation, real estate taxes, and assessments for municipal improvements, at least five (5) days prior to the date on which any penalty shall accrue for the non-payment thereof and shall give the Board written notice within five (5) days of the receipt by such Unit Owner of notice or of actual knowledge of the attaching of any lien (other than the lien of a Permitted Mortgage) or the filing of any suit or other proceeding against his Unit. The Board may, but shall not be obligated to, advance any sums necessary to prevent the attaching of any lien against any Unit (except the lien of a Permitted Mortgage).

- 2) In the event of the failure or threatened failure of any Unit Owner to comply with these By-Laws, with the Association's Rules and Regulations, (as defined by the Board of <u>Trustees</u>), or with the covenants, conditions and restrictions set forth in the Master Deed or in the deed to each Unit, the Board may, but shall not be obligated to, advance any funds necessary to correct or prevent any failure or threatened failure to so comply.
- 3) The amounts and expenses advanced under the foregoing subsections, together in each case with interest at the rate of six percent (18%) per annum, shall be promptly assessed by the Board against the Unit Owner, and shall be collectible and enforceable in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 1, Sub-section <u>D</u> of this Article VI.
- F Committees. The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office, establish committees of the Board composed of at least two (2) persons who are volunteers which, except for an Executive Committee, must include non-Board members. Appointment of the chair of such committees shall be by the committee. The Board may establish such procedures to govern their activities, and delegate thereto such authority as may be necessary or desirable for the efficient management of the property, affairs, and business activities of the Corporation.
- G Promulgation, distribution and enforcement of Rules and Regulations of the Association governing the details of the use and operation of the Property and the use of the Common Elements by the Unit Owners and their lessees, and the employees and entities of any of them.
 - 1) Rules and Regulations of the Association shall be reviewed and revised as necessary by the Board on an annual basis and presented to the Association in conjunction with the annual newsletter at the opening of each season.
 - 2) Require Trustees to formally provide owners with a monthly interim financial statement with comparison of actual to budget, footnote explanations, Profit and Loss, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows, Cash Report, Investment Schedule and Capital Improvement (CIP) schedule. The Profit and Loss Statement must show a <u>Distinction</u> of net operating before and net operating after CIP.
 - 3) Require Trustees to annually present the results of the independent certified public accountant fiscal year audit of community finances and ending September 30 of each year, the financial statement, footnotes, supplementary schedules and auditor

management letter recommendations on operations and financial matters to the Board of Trustees and owners annually, sooner, but no later than the subsequent August fiscal year owners' meeting for owner discussion and acceptance.

H Preparation of a yearly audit, for the previous year by a CPA of all books and records of the Association pertaining to the Property, Common Expenses and expenses of or advances made by the Board pursuant to §1, of Subsection E of this Article VI. The Board shall retain a copy for inspection. The foregoing shall not limit the right of any Unit Owner to inspect the books and records of the Association, as aforesaid, during business hours and upon prior written notice to the Board.

ARTICLE VII INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND TRUSTEES

§1. The members of the Board and/or the Officers acting in such capacity: (i) shall not be liable for the failure of any service to be obtained and paid for by the Board hereunder, or for injury or damages to persons or property caused by the elements or by another Unit Owner or person on the Property; or resulting from electricity, water, rain, dust or sand which may leak or flow from the outside or any parts of the Building, or from any of its pipes, drains, conduits, appliances or equipment, or from any other places, unless caused by their own willful misconduct or bad faith; (ii) shall not be liable to the Unit Owners as a result of the performance of their duties for any mistake of judgment, negligence or otherwise, except for their own willful misconduct or bad faith; (iii) shall have no personal liability, in contract or otherwise, to a Unit Owner or any other person or entity under any agreement, check, contract, deed, lease, mortgage, instrument or transaction entered into by them on behalf of the Board or Unit Owners in the performance of their duties; (iv) shall have no personal liability in tort to a Unit Owner or any other person or entity, direct or imputed, by virtue of acts performed by or for them, except for their own willful misconduct or bad faith, in the performance of their duties; (v) shall not be liable to a Unit Owner for loss or damage caused by theft of or damage to personal property left by such Unit Owner or his tenants or guests in a Unit or in the Common Elements, except for their own willful misconduct or bad faith; and (vi) shall have no personal liability arising out of the use, misuse or condition of the Property, or which might in any other way be assessed against or imputed to them as a result or by virtue of their performance of their duties, except for their own willful misconduct or gross negligence.

§2. The Unit Owners shall indemnify and hold harmless any person, his heirs and personal representative, from and against any and all personal liability, and all expenses, including

counsel fees, incurred or imposed, or arising out or in settlement of any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceedings, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, instituted by any one or more Unit Owners or any other persons or entities, to which he shall be or shall be threatened to be made a party by reason of the fact that he is or was a member of the Board or an Officer, other than to the extent, if any, that such liability or expense shall be attributable to his willful misconduct or bad faith, in the performance of his duties, provided, in the case of any settlement, that the Board shall have approved the settlement, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Such right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which such Board member and/or Officer may be entitled as a matter of law or agreement or vote of Unit Owners or of the Board, or otherwise. The indemnification by the Unit Owners set forth in this §2 of Article VII shall be paid by the Board on behalf of the Unit Owners and shall constitute a Common Expense and shall be assessed and collectible as such. Written notice of complaints brought against all of the Unit Owners, or the Board, or the Officers, employees or agents thereof, in their respective capacities as to the Board, shall promptly be given to the Unit Owners and the holders of any

Permitted Mortgages, and shall be defended by the Board, and the Unit Owners shall have no right to participate other than through the Board in such defense. Complaints brought against one or more but less than all Unit Owners or Units, for an asserted liability arising out of the ownership, occupancy, use, misuse or condition of such Unit, shall be defended by such Unit Owners, who shall promptly give a written notice thereof to the Board and to the holders of any Permitted Mortgages affecting such Units.

ARTICLE VIII <u>NOTICES</u>

§1. All notices to the Association shall be sent by regular and registered or certified mail to the office of the Association or to such other address as the Association may hereafter designate, from time to time. All notices to any Unit Owner shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the Unit or to such other address as may have been designated by the Unit Owner from time to time, in writing, to the Association. All notices to mortgagees of <u>Units</u> shall be sent by registered or certified mail to their respective addresses, as designated by them from time to time, in writing, to the Association. All notices shall be deemed to have been given when mailed, except notices of change of address which shall be deemed to have been given when received.

ARTICLE IX AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS

§1. Amendments to the By-Laws shall be proposed by either the Board of Trustees or by Unit Owners of at least four (4) Units. Any proposed amendment must be reduced to writing, and shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which action is to be taken thereon.

§2. The Affirmative vote of Unit Owners or their voting representatives representing in the aggregate <u>51%</u> of the total outstanding vote of the Association shall be required to amend these By-Laws. This will require the mailing of an official ballot to all Unit Owners.

<u>ARTICLE X</u> <u>PARLIAMENTARY RULES</u>

§1. Roberts Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of proceedings of the Association and the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE XI DISSOLUTION

§1. In the event it shall be deemed advisable and for the benefit of the Members of the Association that the Association shall be dissolved, the procedures Concerning dissolution and winding up set forth in Title of the Revised Statutes of the State of New Jersey, dealing with corporations not for profit shall be followed, to the extent they apply to the Association.

§2. In the event of dissolution, the assets of the Association, after the payment of all debts, including mortgages and other encumbrances, shall be distributed to the Unit Owners in the same proportion as their respective number of Units.

ARTICLE XII PREVIOUS BY-LAWS

§1. All existing By-Laws not revised or amended in this document remain in effect.